[tem




PROCLAMATION

A Day of Thanksgiving

WHEREAS, our forefathers established a day of Thanksgiving — a special day set aside to
acknowledge their blessings; and

WHIREAS, it has become traditional for the people of the United States to celebrate a day of

Thanksgiving as a way of reflecting on their many blessings and giving thanks for all they have
been given; and

WHEREAS, the people of this country, and more specifically, the people of Smithville, are
truly blessed with much for which to be thankful; and

'WI-[EREAS, as we count our blessings, let us not forget the freedoms we so often take for
granted, freedoms that were hard-fought by earlier generations and current servicemen and
women who have given their lives so that we might be free; and

WHEREAS, with these freedoms come a responsibility — it is up to each of us to find a way to
participate in the community, by working through the churches, the schools, local service
organizations, and the City to help improve the quality of life for those who are less fortunate,

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Sharon Foerster, Mayor of the City of Smithville, do hereby proclaim
Thursday, November 24, 2022, as:

A Day of Thanksgiving

and urge all citizens to join with the churches of our City to reinforce the ties of family and
community and to express gratitude for the many blessings we enjoy.

PROCLAIMED this 14th day of November 2022,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have
hereunto set my hand and caused the
Seal of the City of Smithville to be
affixed this 14" day of November
2022.

Sharon Foerster, Mayor

ATTEST:

Jennifer Lynch, City Secretary




Proclamation

Honor Our Veterans Day

WHEREAS, our community has a continuing sense of gratitude to those who have given so
much in the defense of the freedoms which we all continue to enjoy; and

WHEREAS, the freedoms we enjoy as Americans have been purchased and maintained at a
high price throughout our history; and

WHEREAS, since the establishment of the original 13 states, Americans have been willing to

fight and die to preserve their individual rights guaranteed in the United States Constitution and
the Bill of Rights; and

WHEREAS, we owe a great debt to those who have served in defense of this nation; and

WHEREAS, throughout the generations, their sacrifices have preserved our unique form of
government dedicated to human rights and respect for the individual; and,

WHEREAS, for many, that sacrifice has ended in permanent injury or death, yet their spirit
remains in the continued preservation of our freedoms and the promise of liberty established as
an example for all the oppressed persons of the world; and,

WHEREAS, in honor of these dedicated men and women, we pledge our continued defense of
our nation so that their sacrifice will stand before the entire world as a tribute to the spirit and
determination of a people dedicated to the principles of freedom and democracy;

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Sharon Foerster, Mayor of the City of Smithville, on behalf of the
entire City Council, do hereby proclaim November 11" as

HONOR OUR VETERAN’S DAY

and urge all citizens to honor our veterans and rededicate themselves to the preservation of our
liberties under the Constitution.

Passed and approved on this 14™ day of November 2022.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have
hereunto set my hand and caused
the Seal of the City of Smithville to
be affixed this 14" day of November
2022.

Sharon Foerster, Mayor

ATTEST:

Jennifer Lynch, City Secretary




NATIONAL SOCIETY DAUGHTERS OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION
AMERICAN INDIANS COMMITTEE

Proclamation

National American Indian Heritage Month

WHEREAS, the history and culture of our great nation have been significantly influenced by American
Indians and indigenous peoples; and

WHEREAS, the contributions of American Indians have enhanced the freedom, prosperity, and
greatness of America today, and

WHEREAS, their customs and traditions are respected and celebrated as part of a rich legacy
throughout the United States; and

WHEREAS, Native American Awareness Week began in 1976 and recognition was expanded by
Congress and approved by President George Bush in August 1990, designating the month
of November, as National American Indian Heritage Month; and

WHEREAS, in honor of National American Indian Heritage Month, community celebrations, as well as
numerous cultural, artistic, educational, and historical activities, have been planned;

NOW, THEREFORE be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Smithville, Texas that the .
month of November 2022 is hereby recognized as the National American Indian Heritage

Month and urge all our citizens to observe this month with appropriate programs, ceremonies,
and activities.

“National American Indian Heritage Month”

Passed and approved on this the 14" day of November 2022.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, 1 have
hereunto set my hand and caused
the Seal of the City of Smithville to
be affixed this 14t day of November
2022.

Sharon Foerster, Mayor

ATTEST:

Jennifer Lynch, City Secretary

SR R P Sl P S TR A ol e —



lLANGFORD

COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT

SERVICES
EST. 1983

S 4

General Land Office Resilient Community Program

The application was submitted November 7™, 2022. There were “glitches” in the application
portal that the General Land Office (GLO) had to correct so it took a bit longer than anticipated.
LCMS submitted on the City’s behalf for the maximum amount available, $300,000. Next steps
will be waiting for a possible request for information from GLO if any additional information is
required. At that point, we wait for approval, award, and contract. Upon award, the schedule
below will begin.

Schedule

The review will launch and continue for approximately 18-24 months. It will conclude with
the City Council’s adoption of the Comprehensive Development Plan.

To facilitate the process, the Planning Committee will oversee the process of bringing together a
diverse range of stakeholders to prepare a comprehensive and integrated plan. The Key
Stakeholders Group will include representatives of the community at large including the school
system, local businesses, non-profit organizations, local churches and the development
community.

Event Description Date
City Council Meeting Approval of Scope, Schedule & Regular Staff &
Planning Committee oversight monthly Project
council Team
meeting
Staff & Project Team First meeting with Staff & Project Kick-off Staff &
Meeting Team Project
Team
Planning Committee First meeting with Bimonthly Staff, Project
Planning Committee meetings Team &
Committee
Virtual Public Meeting # 1: Bimonthly Staff,
Workshop/ Overview. meetings Project
Planning Community Profile. Team &
Committee
Committee Vision.
Meeting. *




Planning Meeting # 2: Bimonthly Staff,
Committee Public Utilities/ Infrastructure. meetings Project
Meeting. * Environmental Quality. Team &
Parks and Recreation. Committee
Planning Meeting # 3: Bimonthly Staff,
Committee Housing. meetings Project
Meeting. * Economic Development. Team &
: Committee
Implementation
Planning Meeting # 4: Bimonthly Staff,
Committee Transportation Chapter meetings Project
Meeting* Land Use Team &
Annexation Committee
Planning Open Public “Walk-In” Workshop(s) of | Bimonthly Open to
Committee Public Committee. meetings public
Workshop*
Planning Meeting # 5: Bimonthly Staff,
Committee Overall review to discuss comments meetings Project
Meeting. * from Public Workshop. Team &
Committee
City Council Public Comprehensive Development Plan TBD Opento
Hearing. Update Review and Adoption. public

*Planning Committee meetings will be followed up with a progress report to the City Council at their regularly
scheduled meetings.

To achieve its goal of providing opportunities and encouragement to City residents and
stakeholders to participate in the planning process, the project team will use a variety of
approaches to inform the public and invite participation.

Develop a Link on the City's Website

The Project Team will post information regarding the Comprehensive Development Plan
Review progress and dates of upcoming public participation sessions. This information may
include agendas, minutes, draft plan elements and reports, maps, photographs, and
survey results, as well as provide an opportunity for the public to provide input.

News Releases and Mass Media

Throughout the planning process, the Planning Committee will make efforts to keep
the public informed through media outlets such as the local newspaper and local radio, as
well as City administered media such as the City website and the City’s social media
accounts.



Public Workshops and Meetings

The Planning Committee will hold a series of public workshops and meetings to
gather information relevant to the development. Through public comment residents
and other stakeholders will be able to participate and become instrumental in the
planning process.

Targeted Community Outreach

The Planning Committee will reach out to community groups such as non-profits
and related organizations to attain stakeholder diversity in the project team and
public participation.

Provisions for Open Discussion

To ensure that public meetings allow for an open discussion of the relevant issues,
the City will make every effort to ensure those who choose to participate have the
opportunity to have their opinions heard. To accomplish this, the following actions
will be implemented:

o An agenda will be established for each public hearing or meeting
outlining the purpose, items to be discussed, and any actions that
may be taken.

o Avariety of days and times will be scheduled to encourage
maximum participation by city residents and other
stakeholders.

o Aclearly identifiable facilitator or chair will conduct the meeting or
hearing in an orderly fashion to ensure that all attendees have an
opportunity to offer comments, discuss issues, or provide testimony.

o The facilitator or chair will provide opening remarks that clearly outline
the purpose of the meeting or hearing, describe procedures attendees
shall use during the meeting or hearing when offering input, and
describe how the public input will be used.

o All people attending the meeting or hearing that desire to participate
should be allowed to do so. However, specific factors, such as the
meeting or hearing purpose, number in attendance, time
considerations, and future opportunities to participate may require that
appropriate constraints be applied, to be outlined by the facilitator or
chair if the need arises.

o All attendees will be encouraged to sign in using a provided sign-in sheet.

o Special arrangements will be made under the provisions of the
American with Disabilities Act (ADA) with sufficient advance notice.



Item #5



CITY OF SMITHVILLE
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
OCTOBER 17, 2022

Present: Mayor Sharon Foerster, Councilmembers Janice Bruno, Bill Gordon, Tom Etheredge,
Joanna Morgan, Cassie Barrientos, and City Manager Robert Tamble.

Open Meeting: Call to order: Mayor Foerster called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.
Councilman Gordon led the Invocation and Pledge.

Recognition/Awards/Proclamations/Announcements/Presentations:

a) Proclamation for " Municipal Court Week " Mayor read the proclamation

b) Proclamation for " Breast Cancer Awareness Month” Councilwoman Bruno read the
proclamation

¢) Proclamation from Tom Etheredge on an SBA. A group of downtown business
owners spoke on this topic. They all voiced their concerns and hopes concerning
downtown and what they would like to see. Some explained they would like to see
the lights across Main street extended to include 2" street and further down main
toward City Hall. They would like to see banners across the bridge coming into town.
Would like to bring back the town known for “Hope Floats™ and the sign coming into
town that says “Home of Hope Floats”. They would like to see a park at the end of
Main to utilize the river access. They would like the City to support these ideas and
be open to discussion to make these ideas a reality.

Citizen Comments: None
Approval of the minutes from the September 12, 2022, City Council Meeting. Councilman

Ethedgede made a motion to approve the minutes as presented. Councilman Gordon seconded and
the motion passed unanimously.

Citizen Comments: None

Discussion and Action on Certificate of Appropriateness for 200 Main Street: Monica Poss
(Historic Preservation Design Standards Advisory Committee (HPDSAC) presented
recommendations for approval of two requests from the Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) to
allow Alfred and Laurie Beck (owners of “The Main Gallery of Smithville) to replace the tiles and
sign at 200 Main. The other two requests will be researched and brought back to the council.
Councilwoman Morgan made a motion to approve the replacement of the tiles and the sign and
recognize that the Becks are further researching items and will come back to the Council.
Councilman Gordon seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Citizen Comments: None

Discussion and Action on an Ordinance changing the City’s contributions to TMRS matching ratio
from 1.5:1 to 2:1: Approving this ordinance will increase the Texas Municipal Retirement System
(TMRS) multiplier from 1.5x to 2.0x to better align with what other municipalities of similar size



offer. Councilman Etheredge made a motion to approve the Ordinance. Councilwoman Bruno
seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Citizen Comments: None

Discussion and Action on approving the Budget Amendment(s) amending the 2021-2022 Fiscal
Year Budget: Cynthia has finalized our 2021/22 budget amendments. Revenues exceeded
expenditures by approximately $295k on a $13.7M budget. Councilwoman Morgan made a motion
to approve the Ordinance amending the budget for 2021/2022. Councilwoman Bruno seconded
and the motion passed unanimously.

Citizen Comments: None
Discussion on future Council Workshops: Councilmember Bruno wants the Council to have a
message board and more meetings. She would like to see a workshop added or agenda items added

to each Council meeting so that we can discuss important topics. No action was taken only
discussion.

Citizen Comments: None

Discussion and Action on the approval of the Financial Report. Councilwoman Bruno made a
motion to accept the Financial Report. Councilman Gordon seconded and the motion passed
unanimously.

Adjourn 7:45 p.m.

Sharon Foerster, Mayor
Attest:

Jennifer Lynch, City Secretary



[tem




CITY OF SMITHVILLE

" PILANINING & ZONING APPLICATION

APPLICATION TYPE

.Zom‘ng Change [] Change in Zoning Class Number of  [H] Single

Request: [] Change in Ordinance Requests: ] multiple
[] variance

[] Special Use Permit
(W) Minor Plat/Subdivision
[ Other

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION
1607 E. Loop 230 Smithville, TX 78945

Street Address

*+ Applicant must submit an accurate location map and site plan for application to be considered ***

Legal description [ Platted Land (please provide subdivision, block and lot information below)
[] Unplatted Land (please submit the metes and bounds description from deed)

Subdivision Name: McMahan Addition

Property Tax Code: 87 1 7857 Block Number: n/ a Lot Number: 1
P rty Owner

(arsoﬁsied on Deed): George McMahan

propertyowner 7703 Lasalle Ave. Lubbock, TX 78924

Mailing Address:

. (806)790-8007 Owner'; £mait; 980Tgehmemahan@me.com

owner’s Phone No

Agent's Name :
(ifigplicable): Tim Sanders

agentsmaiting  P.O. Box 615 La Grange, TX 78945

Address:

(979)968-6474 tim@befcoengineering.com

Agent's Phone No: Agent’s Email:




DESCRIPTION OF VARIANCE / EXCEPTION REQUEST

Current Zone Class:  oF-1 O se20d Proposed Zone Class: s ) sr2d
mR O cqa O m O c1 0
c2 O c¢3 = c2 [ c3 =
mwis 0w O wis 0w O
c¢c O e O cc O e O
pz 1 1 O oz OO 1+ O
0 O ez ce0 [ poz[

Describe variance Owner proposes to Replat Lot 1 of McMahan Addition
requested:

Describe special
use requested;

Reason for
Request:

(explain why
special exception
is sought or why a
variance has been
requested)

PETITION

As Owner/Agent, | hereby petition the City of Smithville for approval of the above described request as provided
by the laws of the State of Texas and Ordinances of the City. | understand and agree that the Petition fee is non-
refundable and that | must attend the Planning & Zoning meeting and subsequent City Council meeting in order
for my application to be considered for approval.

W Date: W- 3- ZZ-
(/

OFFICE USE ONLY

Fee Amount: ‘ (€ 7 S 2'2"' Fee Payment: (-g 7 S-_

Signature:

P&Z Date: NOU. l " 10 7’2- Council Date: NO \,- u‘f 20 ZZ-
Acceptedw 6“ pate submitted: 10 ~ Y- 2022~

[E/Nt;tice sent to property owners within 200 feet of proposed property




. REPIAT OF LOT 1 OF

"MCMAHAN ADDITION™
FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT
LEWIS LOMAS SURVEY, A—46

TLAT ROTER .
1. PIOR 10 SSUAEE OF CULDNC POUAT, CTY OF SUVILLL APPROVAL
: OF ‘TIE DLVLGMUGNT PLAN & RIDUIEED, "JTC COVCLOPWERT FLAN AArsT
WEICE GRANACT CONSOCIATIN. N COMMLMICE W OFY 650G »

2. TUNEET TUET £ SCICIATED UNDHADED JONE " ACCORIBIC T8,
TLAA, TLOCO BREURANSET faTT WP HO. ABC2ICTITT DATED SANUARY 1%,

3. OWNDR OF PLATIED LOT() DUAL OC RESPOMSOLE FOf THE DEI0H 44D

o S 1o it o8 I A .f
 PORATS A0 ESVELOMONT UPON BE LOICE. '.,. I, ..-

4, CURRDNT OwNC FOR TN SURLFET TRACT (= "D~J" (KSHWAT COMSMENOIAL) Q.....' Ny &
AL LOTS LAKR I TONE GAZINCARTN ARE BT 1D CITT OF AL QQ,Q..'.~ "
muﬁwjﬂmm-mm .‘i.. ,"Qe.“.' = '
= I F ~ G35 ~

g
;
i
|
!
i
|
E
i
H
I
I

LShAEE0H
()
a

i ﬁli
E!aiii
Hray
it
it
.
il
i
I

R
gete ons 0O T

Ly

istoncrs ony caarinates s oo
Aareas e “TD" baved. o Do Trvee
Cosrdate Smtem = Conied © =T e red toumd
O = U irem red nal
—_ ~ vamant seciic tne
—_— = Ungeririnsd taiasns cobls
— e ——— —warim
e b Y e~ Vel thn
ntiin wasarcr ot o laralie sgried B - watwr meter
o = Gy Pue
o' = Teephenr
il T = e prant
D - Zmtc

“MCMAHAN ADDITION™ RECORDED TN PLAT
NO. 7, PAGE 28-B OF TIE PLAT RECORDS OF
DASTROP COUNTY.

REPLAT OF LOT 1 OF "MCMAHAN ADDITION™
GEORGE MCMAHAN

i BEFCO ENGINEERING, INC.
Birve Hate DT ML AREA CACRES) TOTAL LOTS = 1. 1203 ACRES i
Curve 8| Arc Leng™ | Raduz | Bette | Cherd i . Tatoange, Toras 78945
STREETS = 01716 ACRES Prepared fom COORCE KON 3 .
@ | 9eo6 | 9150 | maardr | M7 30 04T, 7035 1-A 1. 1203 " 3903 Lazalie Mvs. (975) 9686474
TOTAL = 1.2920 ACRES B = F SO Fiem §F=2011
STREETS _D. 1718 L i T Surveying Fiem §10007700
T 093
TOTAL  1.2920 ACRES wom o, CRT |owe  05/15/22 | DRwane Ao
cieckes o CRT | o 57307
WFD B TRT |onc 673722 1 of 1
T\ PMALCITI0-T542 CODICT WOLBN 1P, T30 PLAT\TWCI9-7242 LOT RIPLATIWC
COTO Jubs Mo T3=T34T

Ftd Dosk 33




COPIES OF NOTICES
SENT TO NEWSPAPER
AND 200’ NEIGHBORS.




MAYOR

SHARON FOERSTER
MAYOR PROTEM
WILLIAM GORDON
COUNCIL MEMBERS
JANICE BRUNO
CASSIE BARRIENTOS
TOM ETHEREDGE
JOANNA MORGAN
CITY MANAGER
ROBERT TAMBLE

10/11/2022

Dear Property Owner/Current Resident,

CITY OI’

317 MAIN STREET
P.0, BOX 449
SMITHVILLE, TEXAS
78957
(512) 237-3282
FAX (512) 237-4549

Your address is within 200’ of one or more of the following proposed agenda items.
This notice Is to inform you that The City of Smithville Planning and Zoning Commission
will hold a Public Hearing on November 1, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers
located at 317 Main Street, Smithville, TX for:

Discussion and Action on a replat for 1607 E. Loop 230, Smithville, TX 78957,
R8717857, McMahan Addition Lot 1, Property Owner George McMahan, agent

The Commission will hear all citizens’ concerns for or against the replat. A

Tim Sanders.

recommendation will be given at the City Council meeting by the Planning and Zoning
Commission. The City Council will hold a public hearing and Council meeting to discuss
and seek action on November 14, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. Please check the city website for

any updates about this meeting.

Please follow us on our YouTube Page: (www.youtube.com/channel/UCN7r)z0wVkS4zWVIEVKcH5w).
You can also go to the City's website and click the link on the Planning & Zoning page to access our
YouTube page. We will go live at 6:00 p.m. so that you can view the live meeting. If you have any
questions or concerns, please reach out to Tracie Dzenowski at 51.2-237-3282 ext. 2101 and
check the City's website for any updates about this meeting.

Thank You,

rd |
P T B T N Pl T
Thees DEsrawWaia)

Planning and Zoning Commission: Brian Riewe, Caroline Noyad, Nancy Cathermah Garétt Gutieriez & Monlca Poss.




REPLAT OF LOT 1 OF @A |

"MCMAHAN ADDITION” i .
FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT coupist? 2%
LEWIS LOMAS SURVEY, A—46

THE DETITH A0

3 OWNOR OF PLATIED LOTES) 4l O RLZPORIOLE FOR
i (LT SPQLEL, (aNACL, WALLX,

CONGRRICHON OF E
WASTOWATIR, CTC) 70 SORVC SAID LOT(S) MBOR TD ISSUAMCT OF CTY (¥ &
PODATS AND DOVLOMGONT UPOH THE LOI(S). A o -
4. CLRRONT o TOR IHE ZUILFCT TRACT I3 “C-3" [GAY COMMROAT) /U 2 H
mmﬁmmmmn’ﬂ:mrma"wum J
MUY DULDNG SCTDACK N CURTMCN IS AS FOLLOwS: A
= I & iF e o
= 535 3
e el ~
N PROJECT 5358
() LOCATION
1 )

o commryed 1o v [ E3
b7 oed recarded i\ Cori's [l W, TOVGICT0 of The Oevirap Couniy Officiel Hovarde, 00 HORTY
T irte ses eut o wam propery te g . FCPLAT O LOT 1 OF Wabd AN,
meardmen o oo gt S ity ok Lo . el @] wemtnls 42 Fumiiclians hareisiere ry =3
mﬂtmmh-_&_ih“ﬁm‘—h—.
CCONCT MOLLHAN b cmsmed Brave prroents. 16 b ssasiied Dils the — doy SCALD: 1M

DT bawed o1 the Feren
CLORTL MOLAAAN oate e Comratrate % "= Comival © = /T e v et
e —ats 83 (C0RE 843 O = /T e et
T o oo s
- 3 = Cvartwed wectnc ms
PU——
i el — = Undemrmund tabsshere co0le
Outore et o thm Guy parsenclly apprered GUIRGE MOUNHAN, bnown, La s te-
e e e #oe = weberons 1 e e i Scaied e 1 P Bk b e o = T el
e e for e, Gurrees 976 comsdaratan ieted, AOIT  Locelin of wmivryrimd wtbdims B = e
e  aproela, baved oy &1 e
CVON LNDLR MY HAND AMD TCAL OF OFTICT i the ___ duy of S B s ey el aiarbieg il U7 o waber ortar
by wthiy company preet
- Uty Pee
ms::v-sm?mam 0 = ekl podetton
—— BT O & Cimser = Fiem bt
OTART FUDLC, Shate o Tasen et AT B X -
! 10 oA © = epic
CXcr o BAT & CaoENT —_— e st fmcn.
e — o= O ik feer

e
. PLAT SHOWING THE SURVEY & SUBDIVISION OF
S o s . 5 L2520 ACKES SITGATED IN THE LEWS LOAS
W A—4G, BASTROP Ci
oo I~ = BEING WITION TIIE CORPORATE LIKITS OF THE
L ot B, Coumty GO O TP frLi A F SMITIVILLE, AND DEING THE REPLAT OF LOT 1 OF
vl th itn Gt ois 8] Suthembeeien v “MCMAHAN ADDITION™ RECORDED IN PLAT CABINET
T, RS e e ot o e NO. 7. PAGE 28-B OF THE PLAT RECORDS OF
el T PLAT RLGORGIS o Hamirop bt T £ BASTROP COUNTY.
o e st Trem 87 . fer
WTHESS WY AND A STAL OF OFFICT this the
e !
REPLAT OF LOT 1 OF "MCMAHAN ADDITION™
o X
B Y. GEORGE MCMAHAN
o
Depely
o) LOT ML AREA CACRES) OTAL LOTS = 11203 ACRES ECD ENCREE
o e , s = b
I s e L o e 1-A 1. 1203 TOTALISTREETS 81 TR AR, o e e (979) 8686474
ToTAL = 1.2920 ACRES T T S B & F < Ollgncoring fem fF-2011
STREETS  _O.1716 i ﬁ“’..,".‘z'.‘?‘“'“ e Surveying Fiem §10001700
TOTAL 1. 2920 ACRES R - TRY Jowe 09715722 | i mo,
DATE: 9.
APP'D BY: CRT DATE; 1w/3ee 1 of f
=\ MOLAD L. LOT RCMLATINC
QOFCD Job M 197343




Notices Ran in the Newspaper

The City of Smithville Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on November
1, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall located at 317 Main St. Smithville TX
for Discussion and Action on following items. Special Use Permit for a guest house at 127 Old
Upton Road, Smithville, TX 78957, Property ID 112004, Robert G. Anstey Subdivision, Lot 3,
ACRES 1.146, property owner Christopher and Cindy Miller & a Special Use Permit for a guest
house at 500 Short Street, Smithville, TX 78957, Property ID 22128, BURLESON, BLOCK 19, LOT
4 property owners Ramon and Denise San Luis. A recommendation will be given at the City
Council meeting by the Planning and Zoning Commission. The City Council will hold a public
hearing and Council meeting to discuss and seek action on December 12, 2022, at 6:00

p.m. Please check the City’s website for any updates about this meeting.

Please run the following dates and provide a sworn affidavit October 12, 2022 in the Smithville Times.

The City of Smithville Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on November
1, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall located at 317 Main St. Smithville TX
for Discussion and Action on a replat for 1607 E. Loop 230, Smithville, TX 78957, R8717857,
McMahan Addition Lot 1, Property Owner George McMahan, agent Tim Sanders. A
recommendation will be given at the City Council meeting by the Planning and Zoning
Commission. The City Council will hold a public hearing and Council meeting to discuss and
seek action on November 14, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. Please check the City’s website for any
updates about this meeting.

Please run the following dates and provide a sworn affidavit October 12, 2022 in the Smithville Times.




Results

Select Farcels by Drawing

Only return Teatures that Intersect with the shape
drawn on the map

b
Clear this shape after apolving the quary.
"f Apgly a search distance

200 - Fert

prop A tile s pame
134958 BARIETT, BARRY GENE

67 CITY OF SKUTHVILLE
JCMAHAN, GEORGEN

_TAISIOMAS, L, ACRES 0.9270
At6LON,
In,

10350 HOLWICK REVOCASBLE TRUST 1110

o 1os0] »-\mt_nm.,t..msm'ss
1B SINVILEHOIDINGS INC
1

{BANEBLK12010T7 THAV IO
Lot 3(FR)-45, ACALS 0,35
570

1, LI90ACRES
100 0T 3, 011561 ACRES.
4illon LOT 4, D 161SACALS
Adfitlen 10T 5, Q1002 ACRES
uuhan Adéition LOT 6, BABIOACALS

ANTEMCMAMAN, GEORGEN {McMihan Additien LOT 7, 01C02ACRES

Byiné, BLOCK 115, Lol THAUS & £:9- 10FR'S, ACRESQ93) . 3

IS ENEY ST

‘oot 230

_jloor20

138D

_|eHasesT

{cHASLST

ltus_stoa shtun_stes situs_elty!sltus 3t aitus_tip {addy Jinet
57

T;%‘:Z;Z/!I

5 5
138
3 l:':.r \,\n
=t TR

‘adde_gly. _la_dglr,;l (T
ISMATHYILL (TR
ishamivILE
Wi

] qsx




Item

12



FIRST AMENDMENT TO SOLAR POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This First Amendment to the Solar Power Purchase Agreement dated December 9, 2019 (the “PPA”), is made
as ofthe [___]day of [___], 2022 by and between Smithville Solar One, LLC, a Texas limited Liability Company
(the “Provider”), and the City of Smithville (the “Purchaser”’), a municipality organized and existing under the
laws of the State of Texas, as evidenced by their signature on the last page of this document. Purchaser and
Provider are referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”.

RECITALS

A. WHEREAS Provider and Purchaser are parties to the PPA,
B. WHEREAS the Parties desire to clarify that the Effective Date of the PPA is December 9, 2019;

C. WHEREAS the Parties desire to amend the PPA to remove references to the Purchase Option and Early
Termination;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the sufficiency and
adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree to the following:

AGREEMENT

1. Defined Terms. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in
the PPA.

2. The preamble to the PPA is hereby amended by inserting the date December 9, 2019 before the
words “Effective Date”.

3. Section 1.1 of the PPA is hereby amended by deleting the definitions for “Early Termination Date”,
for “Early Termination Fee”, and for “Option Price”.

4. Section 2.1 of the PPA is hereby amended by deleting the words "and Early Termination, Schedule
2.2" and the words “, subject to Section 2.2,”.

5. Section 2.2 of the PPA is hereby amended by deleting the section in its entirety and replacing it with
[Intentionally left blank].

6. Section 2.3 of the PPA is hereby amended by deleting the section in its entirety and replacing it with
[Intentionally left blank]. '

7. Section 2.4 of the PPA is hereby amended by deleting the words “If the Option Price indicated by
Provider in accordance with Section 2.3 is equal to the Fair Market Value (as determined by an
independent appraiser with experience and expertise in the commercial-scale photovoltaic industry)
and Purchaser disputes such stated Fair Market Value within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice
from Provider, then the Parties shall mutually select an alternative independent appraiser with
experience and expertise in the commercial-scale photovoltaic industry.” and replaced with “The
Parties shall mutually select an independent appraiser with experience and expertise in the
commercial photovoltaic industry.”



10.

11

12.

13.

14.

15.

18.

14

18.

Section 2.5 of the PPA is hereby amended by deleting the words “Subject to Purchaser’s exercise of
its purchase option under Section 2.3, upon” and replaced with “Upon”.

Section 5.5 of the PPA is hereby amended by deleting the words “Subject to Purchaser’s exercise of
its purchase option under Section 2.3, throughout the Term”, and replaced with the words
“Throughout the Term”.

Section 6.1 is hereby amended by deleting the words “In the event that Purchaser is a municipality
or other Governmental Authority, if sufficient funds to provide for payment(s) owed by Purchaser
under this Agreement are not appropriated, the Purchaser shall terminate this Agreement upon notice
in writing to Provider in accordance with the terms of Section 2.2., including, without limitation, the
payment to Provider of the Early Termination Fee.”

. Section 10.3 of the PPA is hereby amended by deleting “, and the provisions of Section 2.2 (Early

Termination)” and replaced with “.”.

Section 11.1 of the PPA is hereby amended by deleting the words “(c) No Early Termination Fee.
Section 2.2 of the Agreement shall not apply to any termination of the Agreement by Purchaser
pursuant to this Section 11.1”.

Section 11.2 of the PPA is hereby amended by deleting the words “(i) the Early Termination Fee
pursuant to Section 2.2” and replacing with the words “(i) INTENTIONALLY OMMITTED".

Section 18.6 is hereby amended by deleting the words “Sections 2.2 (Early Termination),”

Section 18.11 is hereby amended by deleting the words “The payment of the Termination Amount of
Early Termination Fee made or to be made by one Party of the other Party under this Agreement
constitutes a “settlement payment” and/or a “transfer” under the United States Bankruptcy Code.

Schedule 3 is hereby amended by deleting it in its entirety and replacing with [INTENTIONALLY
OMMITTED]”

Counterparts. This First Amendment may be executed in counterparts, and each executed
counterpart shall have the same force and effect as an original instrument.

No Other Amendment. Except as changed hereby, all other terms and conditions in the PPA remain

in full force and effect.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, by their respective officers, representatives or other authorized
persons thereunto duly authorized, have duly executed this Amendment as of the date first written above.

PROVIDER: Smithville Solar One, LLC PURCHASER: City of Smithville
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:




Smithville Solar One, LLC

Solar Power Purchase Agreement

for the City of Smithville

By Go Big Solar, LLC
11-14-2022

Confidential Document

Y GO BIG

SOLAR



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

SOLAR POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This Agreement (“Agreement” as further defined in Section 1.1) is made and entered into as of this
December 9, 2019 (“Effective Date”) and is witnessed and acknowledged by Smithville Solar One, LLC, a
Texas Limited Liability Company, with its principal office at 1727 Ben Crenshaw Way, Austin, TX 78746
(“Provider”) and the City of Smithville, a municipality organized and existing under the laws of the State
of Texas and having its principal place of business at P.O. Box 449, Smithville, TX 78957 (the
“Purchaser”), as evidenced by their sighature on the last page of this document. Purchaser and Provider
or Project Entity are referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Purchaser desires that Provider install, own and operate a solar photovoltaic system and the
ancillary equipment associated therewith (as hereafter defined, “System”) for the purpose of providing
Services (as hereafter defined) for the production and supply of solar energy;

WHEREAS, Provider has agreed to provide the System and has submitted a Proposal dated March 11
2019 (the “Proposal”) which is attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below, and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree
as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS.

1.1 Definitions. In addition to other terms specifically defined elsewhere in the Agreement,
where capitalized, the following words and phrases shall be defined as follows:

“Actual Monthly Production” means the amount of Energy recorded by Provider’s metering equipment
during each calendar month of the Term, pursuant to Section 4.2.

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any specified Person, any other Person directly or indirectly
controlling, controlled by or under common control with such specified Person.

“Agreement” means this Power Purchase Agreement, including the General Conditions and the Exhibits
and Schedules attached hereto.

“Applicable Law” means, with respect to any Person, any constitutional provision, law, statute, rule,
regulation, ordinance, treaty, order, decree, judgment, decision, certificate, holding, injunction,
registration, license, franchise, permit, authorization, guideline, Governmental Approval, consent or
requirement of any Governmental Authority having jurisdiction over such Person or its property,
enforceable at law or in equity, including the interpretation and administration thereof by such
Governmental Authority.

“Assignment” has the meaning set forth in Section 13.1.



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

“Bankruptcy Event” means with respect to a Party, that either: (i) such Party has (A) applied for or
consented to the appointment of, or the taking of possession by, a receiver, custodian, trustee or
liquidator of itself or of all or a substantial part of its property; (B) admitted in writing its inability, or be
generally unable, to pay its debts as such debts become due; (C) made a general assignment for the
benefit of its creditors; (D) commenced a voluntary case under any bankruptcy law; (E) filed a petition
seeking to take advantage of any other law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, winding
up, or composition or readjustment of debts; (F) failed to controvert in a timely and appropriate
manner, or acquiesced in writing to, any petition filed against such Party in an involuntary case under
any bankruptcy law; or (G) taken any corporate or other action for the purpose of effecting any of the
foregoing; or (ii) a proceeding or case has been commenced without the application or consent of such
Party in any court of competent jurisdiction seeking (A) its liquidation, reorganization, dissolution or
winding-up or the composition or readjustment of debts or, (B) the appointment of a trustee, receiver,
custodian, liquidator or the like of such Party under any bankruptcy law, and such proceeding or case
has continued undefended, or any order, judgment or decree approving or ordering any of the foregoing
shall be entered and continue unstayed and in effect for a period of sixty (60) days.

“Business Day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday or a Federal Reserve Bank holiday.
“Commercial Operation Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3(b).

“Confidential Information” has the meaning set forth in Section 15.1.

“Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions” or “CCR” means those requirements or limitations related to
the Premises as may be set forth in a lease, if applicable, or by any association or other organization,
having the authority to impose restrictions.

“Disruption Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.3(b).
“Energy” means electric energy measured in kilowatt-hours (“kWh”) or in megawatt-hours (“MWh”).

“Energy Storage” means batteries or other forms of energy stored for use when energy costs are higher,
and/or to improve the economics of the solar offering.

“Environmental Attributes” means, an aspect, claim, characteristic or benefit associated with the
generation of a quantity of electricity by an electricity generation facility that is capable of being
measured, verified or calculated, including any and all credits, benefits, emissions reductions, offsets
and allowances, howsoever entitled, attributable to the generation of such quantity of electricity by an
electricity generation facility and its displacement of conventional, nonrenewable electricity generation
together with the right(s) to report ownership of such attributes to any agency, authority, or third party.
Environmental Attributes shall not include (i) any energy, capacity, reliability or other power attributes
from the electricity generation facility; (ii) production tax credits associated with the construction or
operation of the electricity generation facility and other financial incentives in the form of credits,
reductions or allowances associated with the electricity generation facility that are applicable to a state,
provincial or federal income taxation obligation; or (iii) fuel-related subsidies, “tipping fees”, or other
local subsidies received by the electricity generation facility for the destruction of particular preexisting
pollutants or the promotion of local environmental benefits



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

“Estimated Annual Production” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2.

“Expiration Date” means the date on which the Agreement terminates by reason of expiration of the
Term.

“Fair Market Value” means, with respect to any tangible asset or service, the price that would be
negotiated in an arm’s-length, free market transaction, for cash, between an informed, willing seller and
an informed, willing buyer, neither of whom is under compulsion to complete the transaction. Fair
Market Value of the System will be determined pursuant to Section 2.4.

“Financing Party” means, as applicable (i) any Person (or its agent) from whom Provider (or an Affiliate
of Provider) leases the System, or (ii) any Person (or its agent) who has made or will make a loan to or
otherwise provider financing to Provider (or an Affiliate of Provider) with respect to the System.

“Force Majeure Event” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.1.

“General Conditions” means this Power Purchase Agreement, excluding the Exhibits and Schedules
hereto.

“Governmental Approval” means any approval, consent, franchise, permit, certificate, resolution,
concession, license, or authorization issued by or on behalf of any applicable Governmental Authority.

“Governmental Authority” means any federal, state, regional, county, town, city, or municipal
government, whether domestic or foreign, or any department, agency, bureau, or other administrative,
regulatory or judicial body of any such government.

“Indemnified Persons” means the Purchaser Indemnified Parties or the Provider Indemnified Parties, as
the context requires.

“Initial Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.

“Installation Work” means the construction and installation of the System and the start-up, testing and
acceptance (but not the operation and maintenance) thereof, all performed by or for Provider at the
Premises.

“Invoice Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.2.

“kWh Rate” means the price per kWh set forth in Schedule 2 payable for the services to be provided
hereunder including Energy, and heat.

“Liens” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1(e).

“Letter(s) of Credit” means one or more irrevocable, non-transferable standby letters of credit issued by
a U.S. commercial bank or a U.S. branch of a foreign bank (which is not an Affiliate of either Party) with
such bank having a credit rating of at least A- from Standard & Poor’s Rating Group and A3 from
Moody’s Investor Service, and otherwise being in a form acceptable to the Party in whose favor the
letter of credit is issued. Costs of a Letter of Credit shall be borne by the applicant for such Letter of
Credit.



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

“Local Electric Utility” means the local electric distribution owner and operator providing electric
distribution and interconnection services to Purchaser at the Premises.

“Losses” means all losses, liabilities, claims, demands, suits, causes of action, judgments, awards,
damages, cleanup and remedial obligations, interest, fines, fees, penalties, costs and expenses (including
all reasonable attorneys’ fees and other reasonable costs and expenses incurred in defending any such
claims or other matters or in asserting or enforcing any indemnity obligation).

“Party” or “Parties” has the meaning set forth in the preamble hereof.

“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, business
trust, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated association, joint venture, firm, or
other entity, or a Governmental Authority.

“Premises” means the premises described in Schedule 1 of the Special Conditions. For the avoidance of
doubt, the Premises includes the entirety of any structures and underlying real property located at the
address described in Schedule 1.

“Provider” has the meaning set forth in the Special Conditions.

“Provider Default” has the meaning set forth in Section 11.1(a).

“Provider Indemnified Parties” has the meaning set forth in Section 16.2.

“Purchase Date” means the day that occurs on the date that is the sixth (6'") anniversary, the tenth (10™)
anniversary, and the fifteenth (15") anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date, provided that if such
day is not a Business Day, the Purchase Date shall be the next Business Day to occur after such day.

“Purchaser” has the meaning set forth in the Special Conditions.
“purchaser Default” has the meaning set forth in Section 11.2(a).
“purchaser Indemnified Parties” has the meaning set forth in Section 16.1.

“Renewal Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.

“Representative” has the meaning set forth in Section 15.1.

“Security Agreement” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.2.

“Stated Rate” means a rate per annum equal to the lesser of (a) the “prime rate” (as reported in The
Wall Street Journal) plus two percent (2%) and (b) the maximum rate allowed by Applicable Law.

“System Operations” means the Provider's operation, maintenance and repair of the System performed
in accordance the requirements herein.

“Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

“Transfer Time” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.3(a).

1.2 Interpretation. The captions or headings in these General Conditions are strictly for
convenience and shall not be considered in interpreting the Agreement. Words in the
Agreement that impart the singular connotation shall be interpreted as plural, and words that
impart the plural connotation shall be interpreted as singular, as the identity of the parties or
objects referred to may require. The words “include”, “includes”, and “including” mean include,
includes, and including “without limitation” and “without limitation by specification.” The words
“hereof”, “herein”, and “hereunder” and words of similar import refer to the Agreement as a
whole and not to any particular provision of the Agreement. Except as the context otherwise
indicates, all references to “Articles” and “Sections” refer to Articles and Sections of these
General Conditions.

1.3 Entire Agreement and Order of Precedence. This Agreement forms the entire agreement
between the parties and supersedes all written or oral, prior or contemporaneous
communications between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.

In case of a conflict or discrepancy among the elements of this Agreement, such conflict or
inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence to the document elements in the following
order: (1) Exhibit A, (2) the Schedules, (3) the General Conditions, and (4) Exhibit B.

2. TERM AND TERMINATION.

2.1 Term. The term of the Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall
continue for ten (10) years from the Commercial Operations Date (“Initial Term”), unless and
until terminated earlier pursuant to the provisions of the Agreement. After the Initial Term, the
Agreement shall be-renewed automatically by the parties for three (3) additional five (5) year
terms (“Renewal Term”) unless terminated in writing by either Party. The Initial Term and the
subsequent Renewal Terms, if any, are referred to collectively as the “Term,” and are renewed
automatically. During any Renewal Term, either Party may terminate the Agreement upon one
hundred and eighty (180) days’ prior written notice to the other Party.

2.2 Intentionally left blank.
2.3 Intentionally left blank.

2.4 Determination of Fair Market Value. The Parties shall mutually select an independent
appraiser with experience and expertise in the commercial-scale photovoltaic industry. Such
appraisers shall be subject to applicable Internal Revenue Service processes and requirements
and act_in a commercially reasonable manner and in good faith to determine the Fair Market
Value of the System as of the applicable Purchase Date and shall set forth such determination in
a written opinion delivered to the Parties. The valuation made by the appraiser(s) shall be
binding upon the Parties in the absence of fraud or manifest error. The final appraised value
shall be the determined by the average of the two independent appraisals. The costs of the
initial appraisal shall be borne by Provider. The cost of the alternative appraisal shall be borne
by the Purchaser.



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

2.5 Removal of System at Expiration. Upon the expiration or earlier termination of the
Agreement, Provider shall, at Provider’s expense, remove all of its tangible property comprising
the System from the Premises on a mutually convenient date but in no case later than one
hundred and twenty (120) days after the Expiration Date. The Premises shall be returned to its
original condition, except for System mounting pads or other support structures and ordinary
wear and tear. If the System is to be located on a roof, then in no case shall Provider’s removal
of the System affect the integrity of Purchaser’s roof, which shall be as leak-proof and
structurally sound as it was prior to removal of the System (other than ordinary wear and tear).
For purposes of Provider’s removal of the System, Purchaser’s covenants pursuant to Section
7.2 shall remain in effect until the date of actual removal of the System.

2.6 Conditions of the Agreement Prior to Installation. In the event that any of the following
events or circumstances occur prior to the Commercial Operation Date, Provider or Purchaser
may (at its sole discretion) terminate the Agreement, in which case neither Party shall have any
liability to the other: (a) the Provider determines that the Premises, as is, is insufficient to
accommodate the System; (b) there exist site conditions (including environmental conditions) or
construction requirements that were not known as of the Effective Date and that could
reasonably be expected to materially increase the cost of Installation Work or would adversely
affect the electricity production from the System as designed; (c) there is a material adverse
change in the regulatory environment, incentive program or federal or state tax code (including
the expiration of any incentive program or tax incentives in effect as of the Effective Date) that
could reasonably be expected to adversely affect the economics of the installation for Provider
and its investors; (d) Provider is unable to obtain financing for the System on terms and
conditions satisfactory to it; (e) Provider has not received a fully executed (i) license
substantially in the form of Exhibit A from the owner of the Premises, and (ii) a release or
acknowledgement from any mortgagee of the Premise, if required by Provider’s Financing Party,
to establish the priority of its security interest in the System; (f) there has been a material
adverse change in the rights of Purchaser to occupy the Premises or Provider to construct the
System on the Premises; (g) Purchaser has not received evidence reasonably satisfactory to it
that interconnection services will be available with respect to Energy generated by the System
under a net-metering arrangement mutually agreeable to the Parties, subject to applicable law
and the utility’s requirements; (h) Provider or Purchaser has determined that there are
easements, CCRs or other liens or encumbrances that would materially impair or prevent the
installation, operation, maintenance or removal of the System; (i) verification is withheld from
FAA regarding the approval of the Solar Glare Hazard Analysis Plot (SGHAT) and Form 7460 “FAA
Notice of Proposed Construction”; (j) confirmation approval is withheld from LCRA regarding
metering and exemption from QSE review and/or compliance with their distributive generation
policy; (k) Tax Relief Rebate Agreement between Purchaser and Provider is not reached in a
mutually agreed manner that is satisfactory to both Parties; () Bluebonnet Electric Cooperative
does not approve of the installation and operation of a direct-tie distribution line across their
service territory from the project facility to the Smithville Substation.

PURCHASER RIGHT TO REVIEW CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND TESTING OF SYSTEM.

3.1 Installation Work. Provider will cause the System to be designed, engineered, installed

and constructed substantially in accordance with Schedule 1, Applicable Law, and consistent

with generally accepted utility practices. Upon request, Purchaser shall have the right to review
6



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

all construction plans and designs, including engineering evaluations of the impact of the
System.

3.2 Interconnection Approval; Permits. Provider shall be responsible for all Approvals and
Permits including but not limited to those related to interconnection of system to the utility grid
with the City of Smithville, and any permits required by Bastrop County or the City of Smithville,
and any waivers, approvals or releases required. An Interconnection Agreement (Exhibit C) with
the City of Smithville will be provided prior to construction Date, and a copy shall be delivered
to the Purchaser and made a part of this Agreement in Exhibit C. The Interconnection
Agreement will require the installation of a direct-tie distribution circuit that extends from the
project facility to the Smithville Substation. This distribution circuit will cross the service
territory of Bluebonnet Electric Cooperative, and therefore will require Bluebonnet’s approval.
The direct-tie distribution line shall be constructed with the cooperation of the Purchaser and
the expense shall be shared between the Purchaser and Provider. The Provider will be
responsible for seeking easement and access agreements with the landowners. Purchaser will
have the option to own and operate the distribution line at its sole discretion.

33 Details of the construction and payment of the distribution line installation shall be
addressed in the Interconnection Agreement (Exhibit C) and will also be part of a mutually
beneficial 380 Economic Development Agreement as described in Section 5.8.

34 System Acceptance Testing. (a) Provider shall conduct testing of the System in
accordance with such methods, acts, guidelines, standards and criteria reasonably accepted or
followed by commercial solar photovoltaic energy system integrators and operators in the
United States. (b) If the results of such testing indicate that the System is capable of generating
Energy for at least four (4) consecutive hours, using such instruments and meters as have been
installed for such purposes, and the System has been approved for interconnected operation by
the City of Smithville, then Provider shall send a written notice to Purchaser to that effect, and
the date of such notice shall be the “Commercial Operation Date.”

SYSTEM OPERATIONS.

4.1 Provider as Owner and Operator. The System will be owned by Provider or Provider’s
Financing Party and will be operated and maintained and, as necessary, repaired by Provider at
its sole cost and expense.

4.2 Metering. Provider shall install and maintain a utility grade kilowatt-hour (kWh) meter
for the measurement of electrical energy produced by the System. Provider shall pay for the
installation and maintenance of advanced metering system and the meter(s) shall be capable of
measuring output in 15-minute intervals. Purchaser (and/or its designee) shall have direct
access to the meter data. At its own discretion, the City of Smithville and LCRA may have a
separate meter or meters, and Provider will facilitate the installation and operation if requested.
In addition, LCRA will settle with Smithville by reducing their purchases from LCRA by the
amount generated at the solar facility. If the solar generation is more than 15% of their total
adjusted metered load in any 15-min interval, the excess generation will be credited at ERCOT’s
real time settlement point price. With ERCOT’s current rules, this solar facility will be sized at



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

less than 1 MW of capacity and does not require additional settlement allocations. However, if
ERCOT changes the registration threshold, LCRA will follow the same cost allocations and the
Provider will comply with all rules at its own expense and shall be solely responsible for such
compliance. Provider to be responsible for any filings with ERCOT should current requirements
change or production exceeds 1 MW.

4.3 System Disruptions. Substitution of Premises. If, for reasons other than Provider’s
negligence, willful misconduct, or breach of its obligations hereunder or as otherwise provided
for in this Agreement, Provider ceases to have access rights to the Premises as necessary to
operate the System prior to the Expiration Date, then Provider shall either (i) provide a mutually
agreeable substitute premises in a location with similar capability to accommodate the System,
or (i) terminate the Agreement pursuant to Section 2.2. In connection with such substitution,
Purchaser and Provider shall amend this Agreement to specify the substitute premises. Provider
shall pay all reasonable costs associated with relocation of the System including all costs and
expenses incurred in connection with removal of the System from the existing Premises and
repair or maintenance of the Premises, if applicable, and installation and testing of the System
at such substitute premises and all applicable interconnection fees and expenses at the
substitute premises, as well as costs of new title search and other out of pocket expenses
connected to preserving and re-filing the security interest of Provider’s Financing Party in the
System.

DELIVERY OF SERVICES.

5.1 Purchase Requirement. Purchaser agrees to purchase one hundred percent (100 %) of
the Energy generated by the System during each relevant month of the Term at the kwWh Rate
specified in Schedule 2. The Energy delivered by Provider to Purchaser hereunder shall be
referred to as “Services”.

52 Estimated Annual Production. The annual estimate of Energy generation with respect
to the System for any given year as determined pursuant to this Section shall be the “Estimated
Annual Production.” The Estimated Annual Production for each year of the Term is set forth in

Schedule 4 and is subject to periodic fluctuations.

5.3 Production Guarantee. Provider guarantees kWhr production output of (eighty-five
percent) 85% of the stated values set forth in Schedule 4. The Provider shall perform monthly
system tests to determine the energy production values in order to ensure optimum
performance of the system and monthly statements shall be provided to Purchaser that
calculate the total energy production values. Through its operations and maintenance
measures, equipment warranties and solar monitoring, Provider shall immediately remedy any
system deficiencies in order to ensure optimum performance of the system output. At the end
of each two (2) year period, the Provider shall report to the Purchaser the overall system
performance data regarding kWhr production values during the two (2) year period. In the
event the actual production output falls below 85% of the stated estimated values in Schedule 4,
the “shortfall,” Provider shall pay to the Purchaser a shortfall amount, which is calculated as the
difference between the current PPA Rate at the time and the wholesale energy cost at the node
multiplied by the total kWhr under-production value based on the Schedule 4 estimated values.
8



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

The payment shall be made as a credit on the Invoice or in the form of a check or money order
within 60 days of the end of the second (2") year of each two (2) year period.

5.4 Environmental Attributes. Purchaser’s purchase of energy generation and Services shall
include all Environmental Attributes associated with the Energy generated by the System, which
shall be retained by the Purchaser for the duration of the Term. Provider disclaims any right to
such Environmental Attributes based upon the installation of the System at the Premises, and
shall, at the request of Purchaser, execute any document or agreement reasonably necessary to
fulfill the intent of this Section.

5.5 Title to System. Throughout the Term, Provider or Provider’s Financing Party shall be the
legal and beneficial owner of the System at all times, and the System shall remain the personal
property of Provider or Provider’s Financing Party and shall not attach to or be deemed a part
of, or fixture to, the Premises. The System shall at all times retain the legal status of personal
property as defined under Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code. Purchaser covenants that
it will use reasonable commercial efforts to place all parties having an interest in or lien upon
the real property comprising the Premises on notice of the ownership of the System and the
legal status or classification of the System as personal property. If there is any mortgage or
fixture filing against the Premises which could reasonably be construed as attaching to the
System as a fixture of the Premises, Purchaser shall provide, at Provider’s request, a disclaimer
or release from such lien holder. If Purchaser is the fee owner of the Premises, Purchaser agrees
to file, at the request of Provider and at Provider’ sole expense, a disclaimer of the System as a
fixture of the Premises in the office where real estate records are customarily filed in the
jurisdiction of the Premises. If Purchaser is not the fee owner, Purchaser will, at Provider’s
request, use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain such agreement to file from such owner
or consent of such owner to have Provider make such filing on its behalf; provided that such
filing will be made at Provider’s request and at Provider’s sole expense.

5.6 First Right of Refusal for Additional Energy. Purchaser has the Option to enter into one
additional Power Purchase Agreement with Provider for the purchase of energy generated
exclusively for the Purchaser, provided that Purchaser exercises its Option within two (2) years
from the Commercial Operation Date (COD) of the System or within one (1) year from the
Notice to Proceed (NTP) with the construction of a second (2") system at the same project site.
The Option will be delivered by Provider under the same terms and rates as this Power Purchase
Agreement, unless changes are agreed to by both Parties, and must be exercised by Purchaser
within a One Year Period.

5.7 Energy Storage. Provider and Purchaser agree to jointly explore the feasibility and
potential deployment of a battery energy storage system (BESS) for the benefit of the Purchaser
and Provider. The BESS will be designed with the intent of the Provider delivering additional
energy to the Purchaser in order to improve the economics of the solar power purchase
agreement and/or to supply an alternative source of energy to the Purchaser during times when
energy costs are higher than normal. Neither Party is obligated to perform BESS services unless
agreed to by both Parties and details of a business relationship are to be negotiated.



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

5.8 Voluntary Annexation. Within one year from the date of signing this Solar Power Purchase
Agreement, Provider agrees to execute with the Purchaser a 380 Economic Development
Agreement for the Voluntary Annexation into the City of Smithville, the property identified in
Schedule 1 as the System Premises. The Annexation will be filed as a Petition with the City of
Smithville, and shall include a metes and bounds survey that identifies the property. The
Annexation requires Public Notice and approval by the Smithville Planning and Zoning
Committee as well Smithville’s City Council. The Purchaser agrees to waive the filing fee for the
Voluntary Annexation Petition.

5.9 Property Tax Relief. As part of the 380 Economic Development Agreement described in
Section 5.8, the Provider and the Purchaser agree to explore means in which the Provider may
reduce its overall property tax burden in the form of rebates or other relief which may include
the installation of a direct-tie distribution line from the project site to the Smithville Substation
and/or Interconnection fees with the City of Smithville, in exchange for mutually accepted value-
added, performance-based incentives and/or milestones not. Any such Agreements shall not
exceed a period of five (5) years.

6. PRICE AND PAYMENT.

6.1 Consideration. Purchaser shall pay to Provider a monthly payment for the Services
provided during each month in an amount equal to the Energy generated by the System and
delivered to Purchaser in such month, multiplied by the kWh Rate stated in Schedule 2 for the
applicable contract year in which such month occurs (“Services Payment”).

6.2 Invoice. Provider shall invoice Purchaser on or about the first day of each month (each, an
“Invoice Date”), commencing on the first Invoice Date to occur after the Commercial Operation
Date, for the Services Payment in respect of the immediately preceding month. The last invoice
shall include production only through the Expiration Date of this Agreement.

6.3 Time of Payment. Purchaser shall pay all undisputed amounts due hereunder within thirty
(30) days after the date of the applicable Invoice Date.

6.4 Method of Payment. Purchaser shall make all payments under the Agreement by electronic
funds transfer in immediately available funds to the account designated by Provider from time
to time. Interest for any unpaid balance will accrue pursuant to Texas State Finance Law that is
30 days past due. All payments made hereunder shall be non-refundable, be made free and
clear of any tax, levy, assessment, duties or other charges and not subject to reduction,
withholding, set-off, or adjustment of any kind.

6.5 Disputed Payments. If a bona fide dispute arises with respect to any invoice, Purchaser shall
not be deemed in default under the Agreement and the Parties shall not suspend the
performance of their respective obligations hereunder, provided that Purchaser shall not be
required to pay the disputed amounts owed hereunder until such dispute has been resolved by
the Parties. If an amount disputed by Purchaser is subsequently deemed to have been due

10



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

pursuant to the applicable invoice, interest shall accrue on such amount pursuant to Texas State
Finance Law from the date becoming past due under such invoice until the date paid.

7. GENERAL COVENANTS.

7.1 Provider's Covenants. Provider covenants and agrees to the following:
(a) Notice of Damage or Emergency. Provider shall (i) promptly notify Purchaser if it
becomes aware of any damage to or loss of the use of the System or that could
reasonably be expected to adversely affect the System, (i) immediately notify Purchaser
it becomes aware of any event or circumstance that poses an imminent risk to human
health, the environment, the System or the Premises in'connection with this
Agreement.
(b)  System Condition. Provider shall take all actions reasonably necessary to ensure
that the System is capable of providing Services at a commercially reasonable
continuous rate.
(c) Governmental Approvals. While providing the Installation Work, Services, and
System Operations, Provider shall obtain and maintain and secure all Governmental
Approvals required to be obtained and maintained and secured by Provider and to
enable Provider to perform such obligations.
(d)  Health and Safety. Provider shall take all necessary and reasonable safety
precautions with respect to providing the Installation Work, Services, and System
Operations and shall comply with all Applicable Laws pertaining to the health and
safety of persons and real and personal property.
(e) Liens. Other than a Financing Party’s security interest in or ownership of the
System, Provider shall not directly or indirectly cause, create, incur, assume or suffer to
exist any mortgage, pledge, lien (including mechanics’, labor or materialman’s lien),
charge, security interest, encumbrance or claim of any nature (“Liens”) on or with
respect to the Premises or any interest therein, in each case to the extent such Lien
arises from or is related to Provider’s performance or non-performance of its
obligations hereunder. If Provider breaches its obligations under this Section, it shall (i)
immediately notify Purchaser in writing, (ii) promptly cause such Lien to be discharged
and released of record without cost to Purchaser, and (iii) defend and indemnify
Purchaser against all costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and
court costs at trial and on appeal) incurred in discharging and releasing such Lien.

7.2 Purchaser’s Covenants. Purchaser covenants and agrees as follows:
(a) Notice of Damage or Emergency. Purchaser shall (i) promptly notify Provider if it
becomes aware of any damage to or loss of the use of the System or that could
reasonably be expected to adversely affect the System; (ii) immediately notify Provider
if it becomes aware of any event or circumstance that poses an imminent risk to human
health, the environment, the System or the Premises in connection with this
Agreement.
(b) Liens. Other than as provided for in this Agreement, Purchaser shall not directly
or indirectly cause, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any Liens on or with respect

11



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

to the System or any interest therein. If Purchaser breaches its obligations under this
Section, it shall immediately notify Provider in writing, shall promptly cause such Lien to
be discharged and released of record without cost to Provider, and subject to the
availability of lawful appropriations and consistent with the laws of the State of Texas,
Purchaser shall hold Provider harmless from and indemnify it for any final judgment of a
court of competent jurisdiction to the extent attributable to the negligence of the
Purchaser or of its officers or employees when acting within the course and scope of
their employment.

(c) Consents and Approvals. Purchaser or Provider shall ensure that any authorizations
required of Purchaser or Provider under this Agreement are provided in a timely
manner. To the extent that only Purchaser is authorized to request, obtain or issue any
necessary approvals, permits, rebates or other financial incentives, Purchaser shall
reasonably cooperate with Provider, at Provider’s request, to obtain such approvals,
permits, rebates or other financial incentives.

(d) Access to Premises. Provider shall have access to the Premises and System during
the Term of this Agreement and for so long as needed after termination to remove the
System pursuant to the applicable provisions herein, and Purchaser will not interfere or
handle any Provider equipment or the System without written authorization from
Provider; provided, however, that Purchaser shall at all times have access to and the
right to observe the Installation Work or System removal.

(e) Insolation. If Purchaser becomes aware of any activity or condition that could
diminish the Insolation of the System, Purchaser shall notify Provider immediately and
shall cooperate with Provider in preserving the System’s existing Insolation levels.

8. REPRESENTATIONS & WARRANTIES.

8.1 Representations and Warranties Relating to Agreement Validity. In addition to any
other representations and warranties contained in the Agreement, each Party
represents and warrants to the other as of the Effective Date that:

(a) itis duly organized and validly existing and in good standing in the jurisdiction of
its organization;

(b) it has the full right and authority to enter into, execute, deliver, and perform its
obligations under the Agreement and shall maintain such right and authority
throughout the Term;

(c) it has taken all requisite corporate or other action to approve the execution,
delivery, and performance of the Agreement;

(d) the Agreement constitutes its legal, valid and binding obligation enforceable
against such Party in accordance with its terms, except as may be limited by applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws now or
hereafter in effect relating to creditors’ rights generally;

(e) thereis no litigation, action, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the best
of its knowledge, threatened before any court or other Governmental Authority by,
against, affecting or involving any of its business or assets that could reasonably be

12



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

expected to materially adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations hereunder
or carry out the transactions contemplated herein; and

(f) its execution and performance of the Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby do not constitute a breach of any term or provision of, or a
default under, (i) any contract or agreement to which it or, in the case of Provider, any
of its Affiliates is a party or by which it or, in the case of Provider, any of its Affiliates or
its or their property is bound, (ii) its organizational documents, or (iii) any Applicable
Laws.

8.2 Representations Regarding Security Interest. Purchaser has been advised that part of
the collateral securing the financial arrangements for the System may be the granting of
a first priority perfected security interest (the “Security Interest”) in the System to a
Financing Party. In connection therewith, Purchaser represents and warrants as follows:

(a)  to Purchaser’s knowledge, the granting of the Security Interest will not violate
any term or condition of any covenant, restriction, lien, financing agreement, or
security agreement affecting the Premises;

(b)  Purchaser is aware of no existing lease, mortgage, security interest or other
interest in or lien upon the Premises that could attach to the System as an interest
adverse to Provider’s Financing Party’s Security Interest therein;

(c)  to Purchaser’s knowledge, there exists no event or condition which constitutes a
default, or would, with the giving of notice or lapse of time, constitute a default under
this Agreement. Any Financing Party shall be an intended third party of this Section 8.2.

8.3 EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN, THERE IS NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY
OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY AND ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES ARE
DISCLAIMED.

9. TAXES AND GOVERNMENTAL FEES.

Provider shall be responsible for any and all taxes assessed on the generation, sale or delivery of
electric energy produced by the System or the interconnection of the System to the Utility’s
electric distribution system, including property taxes on the System. For purposes of this
Section, “Taxes” means any federal, state and local ad valorem, property, occupation,
generation, privilege, sales, use, consumption, excise, transaction, and other taxes, regulatory
fees, surcharges or other similar charges, but shall not include any income taxes or similar taxes
imposed on Provider’s revenues due to the sale of energy under this Agreement, which shall be
Provider’s responsibility.

10. FORCE MAJEURE.

10.1  Definition. “Force Majeure Event” means includes, but is not limited to any act or event
that prevents the affected Party from performing its obligations in accordance with the
Agreement, if such act or event is beyond the reasonable control, and not the result of the fault
or negligence, of the affected Party and such Party had been unable to overcome such act or
event with the exercise of due diligence (provided that the claiming Party shall not be required
to suffer prejudice or use commercially unreasonable measures to remedy a Force Majeure

13



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

event). A Force Majeure Event shall not be based on the economic hardship or financial
condition of either Party. Force Majeure shall not be based on (i) Purchaser’s inability
economically to use or resell the Services purchased hereunder; or (ii) the loss or failure of
Provider’s supply.

10.2  Excused Performance. Except as otherwise specifically provided in the Agreement,
neither Party shall be considered in breach of the Agreement or liable for any delay or failure to
comply with the Agreement (other than the failure to pay amounts due hereunder), if and to
the extent that such delay or failure is attributable to the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event;
provided that the Party claiming relief under this Section 10 shall: (i) promptly notify the other
Party in writing of the existence of, and details regarding, the Force Majeure Event; (i) exercise
all reasonable efforts necessary to minimize delay caused by such Force Majeure Event; (iii)
notify the other Party in writing of the cessation or termination of said Force Majeure Event;
and (iv) resume performance of its obligations hereunder as soon as practicable thereafter.

10.3  Termination in Consequence of Force Majeure Event. If a Force Majeure Event shall
have occurred that has affected a Party’s performance of its obligations hereunder and that has
continued for a continuous period of one hundred eighty (180) days, then the Party not affected
by Force Majeure shall be entitled to terminate the Agreement upon ninety (90) days’ prior
written notice to the affected Party. If at the end of such ninety (90) day period such Force
Majeure Event shall continue, and the Agreement shall automatically terminate. Upon such
termination for a Force Majeure Event, neither Party shall have any liability to the other (other
than any such liabilities that have accrued prior to such termination).

11. DEFAULT.

11.1  Provider Defaults and Purchaser Remedies. (a) Provider Defaults. The following events
shall be defaults with respect to Provider (each, a “Provider Default”): (i) A Bankruptcy Event
shall have occurred with respect to Provider; (i) Provider fails to pay Purchaser any undisputed
amount owed under the Agreement within ten (10) Business Days from receipt of notice from
Purchaser of such past due amount; (iii) Provider breaches or fails to perform any material term
of the Agreement (other than events that are otherwise specifically covered in this Section 11.1
as a separate Provider Default) and such breach or failure is not cured within thirty (30) days
after Purchaser’s written notice of such breach or failure; (iv) any representation or warranty
made in this Agreement by Provider is not true and complete in any material respect when
given or at any time during the Term; (v) INTENTIONALLY OMITTED; and (vi) Provider
consolidates or amalgamates with, or merges with or into, or transfers all or substantially all of
its assets to, another entity and, at the time of such consolidation, amalgamation, merger or
transfer, the resulting, surviving or transferee entity fails to assume all the obligations of
Provider under this Agreement to which it or its predecessor was a party by operation of law or
pursuant to an agreement reasonably satisfactory to Purchaser.

(b) Purchaser’s Remedies. If a Provider Default described in Section 11.1(a) has occurred and is
continuing, in addition to other remedies expressly provided herein, and subject to Section 12,
Purchaser may terminate the Agreement and shall be entitled to liquidated damages in an
amount equal to the positive difference, if any, of the Fair Market Value of the Services
anticipated to be provided over the remaining Term, as determined by Purchaser in a

14



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

commercially reasonable manner, and the Services Payments associated with such Services
(“Termination Amount”). Upon termination of this Agreement in accordance with this Section,
Purchaser shall promptly calculate the Termination Amount, if any, owed by Provider and
submit an invoice to Provider for such amount. Provider shall pay such Termination Amount
within ten (10) Business Days after receipt of such invoice in accordance with the payment
directions specified by Purchaser (“Termination Amount Payment Date”). In the event Provider,
in good faith, disputes Purchaser’s calculation of the Termination Amount, the Parties shall then
act in good faith to resolve any such dispute, including but not limited to utilizing a procedure
substantially similar to that provided for in Section 2.4 in the event that the Parties are unable to
resolve such dispute; provided however that if through such procedures the Termination
Amount is determined to be equal to or greater than that calculated by Purchaser, Provider shall
pay all costs associated with such procedure, or otherwise the Parties shall share such costs
equally.

11.2  Purchaser Defaults and Provider’s Remedies. (a) Purchaser Default. The following
events shall be defaults with respect to Purchaser (each, a “Purchaser Default”): (i) A Bankruptcy
Event shall have occurred with respect to Purchaser; (ii) Purchaser breaches or fails to perform
any material term of the Agreement (other than events that are otherwise specifically covered
in this Section 11.2 as a separate Purchaser Default) and such breach or failure is not cured
within thirty (30) days after Provider’s written notice of such breach or failure; (iii) Purchaser
fails to pay Provider any undisputed amount due Provider under the Agreement within thirty
(30) days from receipt of notice from Provider of such past due amount; (iv) any representation
or warranty made in this Agreement by Purchaser is not true and complete in any material
respect when given or at any time during the Term; and (v) Purchaser consolidates or
amalgamates with, or merges with or into, or transfers all or substantially all of its assets to,
another entity and, at the time of such consolidation, amalgamation, merger or transfer, the
resulting, surviving or transferee entity fails to assume all the obligations of Purchaser under this
Agreement to which it or its predecessor was a party by operation of law or pursuant to an
agreement reasonably satisfactory to Provider. (b) Provider’s Remedies. If a Purchaser Default
described in Sections 11.2(a) has occurred and is continuing, in additionatto other remedies
expressly provided herein, and subject to Section 12, Provider may terminate this Agreement
and upon such termination, and Provider shall be entitled to receive from Purchaser, as
liquidated damages, an amount equal to the sum of (i) Intentionally omitted. (i) any and all
other amounts previously accrued under this Agreement and then owed by Purchaser to
Provider, and (iii) removal costs as provided in Section 11.3.

11.3 Removal of System. Upon any termination of the Agreement pursuant to this Section 11,
Provider will remove the System pursuant to Section 2.5 hereof at the expense of the defaulting
Party.

12. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY.

12.1 THE PARTIES CONFIRM THAT THE EXPRESS REMEDIES AND MEASURES OF DAMAGES
PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT SATISFY THE ESSENTIAL PURPOSES HEREOF. FOR BREACH OF ANY

15



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

PROVISION FOR WHICH AN EXPRESS REMEDY OR MEASURE OF DAMAGES IS PROVIDED, SUCH
EXPRESS REMEDY OR MEASURE OF DAMAGES SHALL BE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY, THE
OBLIGOR’S LIABILITY SHALL BE LIMITED AS SET FORTH IN SUCH PROVISION AND ALL OTHER
REMEDIES OR DAMAGES AT LAW OR IN EQUITY ARE WAIVED. |F NO REMEDY OR MEASURE OF
DAMAGES IS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, THE OBLIGOR'’S LIABILITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO DIRECT
ACTUAL DAMAGES ONLY, SUCH DIRECT ACTUAL DAMAGES SHALL BE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
DAMAGES. UNLESS EXPRESSLY HEREIN PROVIDED, NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR
CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY OR INDIRECT DAMAGES, LOST PROFITS OR
OTHER BUSINESS INTERRUPTION DAMAGES, BY STATUTE, IN TORT OR CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE.
TO THE EXTENT ANY DAMAGES REQUIRED TO BE PAID HEREUNDER ARE LIQUIDATED, THE PARTIES
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE DAMAGES ARE DIFFICULT OR IMPOSSIBLE TO DETERMINE, OR
OTHERWISE OBTAINING AN ADEQUATE REMEDY IS INCONVENIENT AND THE DAMAGES
CALCULATED HEREUNDER CONSTITUTE A REASONABLE APPROXIMATION OF THE HARM OR LOSS.

NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, PROVIDER SHALL REMAIN LIABLE,

WITHOUT MONETARY LIMITATION, FOR DIRECT DAMAGES FOR PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH OR
DAMAGE TO REAL PROPERTY OR TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
NEGLIGENCE OR OTHER TORT OF THE PROVIDER, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS.

13. ASSIGNMENT.

13.1 Assignment by Provider. Provider may assign or transfer this Agreement to any
other legal entity with the Purchaser’s prior consent, provided that (a) Provider shall
promptly notify Purchaser of any such assignment in writing, (b) such assignee shall
assume all of Provider’s obligations under the Agreement in writing; and (c) such
assignment shall in no event compromise the tax treatment of this Agreement of
the Provider. Any assighment that does not comply with the forgoing shall be
invalid.

14. NOTICES.

14.1 Notice Addresses. Unless otherwise provided in the Agreement, all notices and
communications concerning the Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to the
other Party (or Financing Party, as the case may be) at the addresses set forth in
Schedule 6, or at such other address as may be designated in writing to the other
Party from time to time.

14.2 Notice. Unless otherwise provided herein, any notice provided for in the Agreement
shall be hand delivered, sent by registered or certified U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, or
by commercial overnight delivery service, or transmitted by facsimile and shall be
deemed delivered to the addressee or its office when received at the address for
notice specified above if received during normal business hours on a Business Day
or otherwise such notice shall be deemed delivered on the next Business Day.

16



14.3

Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

Address for Invoices. All invoices under the Agreement shall be sent to the address
provided by Purchaser. Invoices shall be sent by regular first class mail postage
prepaid.

15. CONFIDENTIALITY.

15.1

15.2

Confidentiality Obligation. If either Party provides confidential information,
including business plans, strategies, financial information, proprietary, patented,
licensed, copyrighted or trademarked information, and/or technical information
regarding the financing, design, operation and maintenance of the System or of
Purchaser’s business (“Confidential Information”) to the other or, if in the course of
its performance of this Agreement, or if in the course of negotiating this Agreement
a Party learns Confidential Information regarding the facilities or plans of the other,
the receiving Party shall (a) protect the Confidential Information from disclosure to
third parties with the same degree of care accorded its own confidential and
proprietary information, and (b) refrain from using such Confidential Information,
except in the negotiation and performance of the Agreement. Notwithstanding the
above, a Party may with the consent of the other Party (such consent not to be
unreasonably conditioned, delayed or withheld, provide such Confidential
Information to its officers, directors, members, managers, employees, agents,
attorneys, accountants and consultants, Affiliates, lenders, and potential assignees
of the Agreement or acquirers of Provider or its Affiliates (provided and on
condition that such potential assignees be bound by a written agreement restricting
use and disclosure of Confidential Information) (collectively, “Representatives”), in
each case whose access is reasonably necessary. Each such recipient of Confidential
Information shall be informed by the Party disclosing Confidential Information of its
confidential nature and shall be directed to treat such information confidentially
and shall agree to abide by these provisions. In any event, each Party shall be liable
(with respect to the other Party) for any breach of this provision by its
Representatives. All Confidential Information shall remain the property of the
disclosing Party and shall be returned to the disclosing Party or destroyed after the
receiving Party’s need for it has expired or upon the request of the disclosing Party.

Permitted Disclosures. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, neither Party
shall be required to hold confidential any information that: (a) becomes publicly
available other than through the receiving Party or its Representatives; (b) is
required to be disclosed by a Governmental Authority, under Applicable Law or
pursuant to a validly issued subpoena or required filing, but a receiving Party subject
to any such requirement shall promptly notify the disclosing Party of such
requirement; (c) is independently developed by the receiving Party; or (d) becomes
available to the receiving Party without restriction from a third party under no
obligation of confidentiality. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject
to the State of Texas Freedom of Information Laws, and that only Provider’s
proprietary information shall be excepted from disclosure thereunder.

17



153

16. INDEMNITY.

16,1

16.2

Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

Goodwill and Publicity. Neither Party shall use the name, trade name, service mark,
or trademark of the other Party in any promotional or advertising material without
the prior written consent of such other Party. The Parties shall coordinate and
cooperate with each other when making public announcements related to the
execution and existence of the Agreement, and each Party shall have the right to
promptly review, comment upon, and approve any publicity materials, press
releases, or other public statements by the other Party that refer to, or that
describe any aspect of, the Agreement; provided that no such publicity releases or
other public statements (except for filings or other statements or releases as may be
required by Applicable Law) shall be made by either Party without the prior written
consent of the other Party. At no time will either Party acquire any rights
whatsoever to any trademark, trade name, service mark, logo or other intellectual
property right belonging to the other Party. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Purchaser agrees that Provider may, at its sole discretion, take photographs of the
installation process of the System and/or the completed System, and Provider shall
be permitted to use such images (regardless of media) in its marketing efforts,
including but not limited to use in brochures, advertisements, websites and news
outlet or press release articles. The images shall not include any identifying
information without Purchaser’s prior written authorization.

Provider’s Indemnity. Subject to Section 12, to the extent allowed by law, Provider
agrees that it shall indemnify and hold harmless Purchaser, its permitted successors
and assigns and their respective directors, officers, members, shareholders and
employees (collectively, the “Purchaser Indemnified Parties”) from and against any
and all Losses incurred by the Purchaser Indemnified Parties to the extent arising
from or out of the following: (a) any claim by a third party for or arising out of any
injury to or death of any Person or loss or damage to property of any Person to the
extent arising out of Provider’s negligence or willful misconduct or (b) any claim by a
third party regarding any infringement of patents or the improper use of other
proprietary rights by Provider or its employees or representatives that may occur in
connection with the performance of the Installation Work, System Operations , and
the ownership and use of the System. Provider shall not, however, be required to
reimburse or indemnify any Purchaser Indemnified Party for any Loss to the extent
such Loss is due to the negligence or willful misconduct of any Purchaser
Indemnified Party.

Purchaser’s Indemnity. To the extent allowed by law, Purchaser shall hold Provider
harmless from and indemnify it for any final judgment of a court of competent
jurisdiction to the extent attributable to the negligence of Purchaser or of its officers
or employees when acting within the course and scope of their employment. In
accordance with Texas Law, this Agreement shall be deemed executory only to the
extent monies are appropriated and available for the purpose of the contract, and

18



17. INSURANCE.

17.1

172

[V

Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

no liability on account thereof shall be incurred beyond the amount of such monies.
It is understood that neither this contract nor any representation by any public
employee or officer creates any legal or moral obligation to request, appropriate or
make available monies for the purpose of the contract.

Generally. Provider shall each maintain the following insurance coverages in full
force and effect throughout the Term either through insurance policies or
acceptable self-insured retentions: Commercial General Liability Insurance with
limits of not less than $1,000,000 general aggregate, $1,000,000 per occurrence.
Additionally, Provider shall carry adequate property loss insurance on the System.
The amount and terms of insurance coverage will be determined at Provider’s sole
discretion.

Certificates of Insurance. Upon Purchaser’s request, Provider shall furnish current
certificates evidencing that the insurance required under Section 17.1 is being
maintained. The insurance policy provided hereunder shall contain a provision
whereby the insured agrees to give the Purchaser thirty (30) days’ written notice
before the insurance is cancelled or materially altered, ten (10) days’ notice in case
of a termination or cancellation due to non-payment of premium. Purchaser is self-
insured for its general liability exposure, workers compensation and automobile
liability.

Additional Insureds. Provider’ Commercial General Liability insurance policy shall be
written on an occurrence basis and shall include the Purchaser as an additional
insured as its interest may appear.

18. MISCELLANEOUS.,

18.1
18.2

18.3

18.4
18.5

Intentionally Omitted.

Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended, modified or supplemented by
an instrument in writing executed by duly authorized representatives of Provider
and Purchaser and approved by the State of Texas Attorney General and Office of
Comptroller.

Industry Standards. Unless expressly defined herein, words having well-known .
technical or trade meanings shall be so construed.

Intentionally Omitted

Limited Effect of Waiver. The failure of Provider or Purchaser to enforce any of the
provisions of the Agreement, or the waiver thereof, shall not be construed as a

19



18.6

18.7

18.8

18.9

18.10

18.11

Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

general waiver or relinquishment on its part of any such provision, in any other
instance or of any other provision in any instance.

Survival. The obligations under 2.5 (Removal of System), Section 7 (General
Covenant), Sections 7.2(d), (e), (f) and (g) (Purchaser Covenants), Section 8.3
(Exclusion of Warranties), Article 9 (Taxes and Governmental Fees), Article 12
(Limitation of Liability), Article 14 (Notices), Article 15 (Confidentiality), Article 16
(Indemnity), Article 17 (Insurance), Article 18 (Miscellaneous), or pursuant to other
provisions of this Agreement that, by their sense and context, are intended to
survive termination of this Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination of
this Agreement for any reason.

Governing Law. All disputes arising out of the performance or non-performance
under this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of Bastrop
County and the State of Texas, without regard to principles of conflicts of law other
than Texas law. The Parties agree that any dispute hereunder will be litigated in a
court of competent jurisdiction in Bastrop County, Texas.

Relationship to the Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed
to create an association, joint venture, partnership or any other type of entity or
relationship between Purchase and Provider, or between either or both of them and
any other Party.

Third-Party Beneficiaries. Except as expressly provided herein to the contrary, this
Agreement is intended solely for the benefit of the Parties thereto, and nothing
therein will be construed to create any duty to, or standard of care with reference
to, or any liability to, any person not a Party thereto.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which shall be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one
instrument.

Forward Contract; Service Contract. The Parties acknowledge and agree that this
Agreement constitutes a “forward contract” within the meaning of the United
States Bankruptcy Code. This agreement constitutes a “master netting agreement”
and each party is a “master netting agreement participant” within the meaning of
the United States Bankruptcy Code. The Parties intend this Agreement to be a
“service contract” within the meaning of Section 7701(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986. Purchaser will not take the position on any tax return or in any other
filings suggesting that it is anything other than a purchase of electricity from the
System.

20



Solar Purchase Power Agreement
Confidential Document

IN WITNESS WHEREOF and in confirmation of their consent to the terms and conditions contained in this

Agreement and intending to be legally bound hereby, Provider and Purchaser have executed this
Agreement as of the Effective Date.

PROVIDER: Smithville Solar One, LLC

By:

Name: David M. Cox

Title: Manager

Date:

PURCHASER: City of Smithville

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

21



EXHIBIT A

Financing

Purchaser acknowledges that Provider will be financing the installation of the System either through a
lessor, lender or with financing accommaodations from one or more financial institutions and that the
Provider may sell or assign the System and/or may secure the Provider’s obligations by, among other
collateral, a pledge or collateral assignment of this Agreement and a first security interest in the System.
Any such financing shall be conducted in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.
In order to facilitate such necessary sale, conveyance, or financing, and with respect to any such
financial institutions of which Provider has notified Purchaser in writing Purchaser agrees as follows:

(2)

(b)

(c)

Consent to Collateral Assignment. Purchaser consents to either the sale or conveyance to a

lessor or the collateral assignment by Provider to the a lender that has provided financing of the
System, of the Provider’s right, title and interest in and to this Agreement, with such sale or
conveyance to be conducted in accordance with Section 13.1 of the Agreement.

Notices of Default. Purchaser will deliver to the Financing Party, concurrently with delivery
thereof to Provider, a copy of each notice of default given by Purchaser under the Agreement,
inclusive of a reasonable description of Provider default.

Rights Upon Event of Default. Notwithstanding any contrary term of this Agreement:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

the Financing Party, as collateral assignee, shall be entitled to exercise, in the place and
stead of Provider, any and all rights and remedies of Provider under the

Agreement in accordance with the terms of the Agreement as if the Financing

Party were the Provider and only in the event of a Provider Default. The Financing Party
shall also be entitled to exercise all rights and remedies of secured parties generally
with respect to the System;

the Financing Party shall have the right, but not the obligation, to pay all sums due
under the Agreement and to perform any other act, duty or obligation required of
Provider thereunder or cause to be cured any default of Provider thereunder in the time
and manner provided by the terms of the Agreement as if such Financing Party were
Provider; and

upon the exercise of remedies under its security interest in the System, including any
sale thereof by the Financing Party, whether by judicial proceeding or under any power
of sale contained therein, or any conveyance from Provider to the Financing Party (or
any assignee of the Financing Party) in lieu thereof, the

Financing Party shall give notice to Purchaser of the transferee or assignee of the
Agreement, which shall be conducted in accordance with Section 13.1 of the Agreement
as if the Financing Party were the Provider. Any such exercise of remedies shall not
constitute a default under this Agreement.

22



(d)

Right to Cure.

@

(ii)

Purchaser will not exercise any right to terminate or suspend this Agreement unless it
shall have given the Financing Party prior written notice by sending notice to the
Financing Party (at the address provided by Provider) of its intent to terminate or
suspend this Agreement, specifying the condition giving rise to such right. As provided
for in Section (c) of this Exhibit A, the Financing Party shall have the right to cure any
Provider Default within the time periods specified within the Agreement as if the
Financing Party were the Provider.

If the Financing Party (including any purchaser or transferee), pursuant to an exercise of
remedies by the Financing Party, shall acquire title to or control of Provider’s assets and
shall, within the time periods described in Sub-section (c)(i) of this Exhibit A above, cure
all defaults under the Agreement existing as of the date of such change in title or control
in the manner required by this Agreement and which are capable of cure by a third
person or entity, then such person or entity shall no longer be in default under the
Agreement, and the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

23



Exhibit B
Site Plan and Engineering Drawings

Exhibit B

N
X
1T
s AR P
PRRNSN, tOEN Fiao)
W O BTG
— LN BT
AR N
— meorume
— AT
—
—— DA
—_—
=i T
— VPCTHT AW
woTIsear
CITRD AN
maz o
]
e
A VLY,
AN
T ey
Da( Sy P 11 e,
A fywaian
L
P
ai¥y
O
Tearn
it ) ol

AN VID
Fanl vt

A3, REREL
Smitraie Som Gok

i

F i

e L e e R e

’,-_—m - SURERAF ERNFLaT e B

j=2Er b B35 1B da kea BAY I |

STHE [ Siizan 3EedER R Lo b s
[Pastec=qisned i EAEEses oy

kel i T

ipEaseryes] PRI bE R
Vi veEsn| [arser T

T TS S N T
ﬁmk‘mmm EIAFE =

24



EXHIBIT C

AGREEMENT FOR INTERCONNECTION AND PARALLEL OPERATION:
RENEWABLE PRODUCER

Th .
THIS AGREEMENT made this?A day of DEC__, 2020, by and between Smithville Solar One, LLC
(hereinafter referred to as the "Producer”) and the City of Smithyllle (hereinafter referred Lo as the
“City”) Is as follows:

1. Purpose. Praducer owns or intends to own, install, and/ar operate a Distributed Generation {"DG")
facility and desires to interconnect and aperate such install atlan in parallel with the City's electric
distribution system. This Agreement defines the relationship between the City and the Producer with
regard to the Producer's DG, Including terms affecting the purchase and sale of electricity as well as
reasonable conditions far interconnection and parallel operation.

2. Producer's Certification. The Producer certifies that Producer Is using renewable resources with an
apgregate deslgn capacity equal to ar greater than 50 kilowatts DC but less than 1 MW DC,

3, Producer’s Distributed Generation. The DG to which this Agreement applies is described below:
9065 kW AC Distributed Generation solar energy delivered to the City on their distribution line via a
dedicated solar circuit to be built by Producer on behalf of the City. The solar circuit will tie directly to
Smithville's existing distribution circult defined as SL-20, Point “E” as shown on the Schnelder
Engineering Drawing 205£7301-d201. A reclosure will be installed by the producer at this location to
protect the circuit from point “EY back to the Primary meter pole #13.

Emergency Contact:

Narme: David M. Cox
Address: 1727 Ben Crenshaw Wav, Austin, TX 78746
Phone: 512-296-5040

4, Terms. The City agrees to use reasonable diligence to provide simultaneous electric service.
Interconnection, parallel operation, and sales and purchases of electricity shall be governed by the City’s
Power Purchase Agreement with Producer, including any and all amendments that may hereafter be
approved or ordered. SAID TARIFF INCLUDING ALL SERVICE RULES, REGULATIONS AND RATES 15 A PART
OF THIS AGREEMENT TO THE SAME EXTENT AS |F FULLY SET OUT HEREIN AND 15 ON FILE AND
AVAILABLE AT THE CITY'S OFFICE IN SMITHVILLE, TEXAS.

5. Intercannectlon. Priar to interconnection, the Praducer shall have (a) fulfilled all requisites for the
provision of electric service contained in engineering plans; (b) provided an interconnection plan and
other infarmatian; (¢) complied with the conditions for any facility extension; (d) provided satisfactory
lability Insurance; (@) signed and delivered this Agreement; (f) complelad construction; (g) complied
with laws; (h) given notice of intent to energize; and (1) eliminated any conditions preventing
interconnection. The Producer warrants to the City that the Producer's DG is constructed, shall be
maintained In a safe and reliable condition, and shall comply with the latest applicable codes.

25



6. Parallel Operation. The Producer is responsible far installation, safe operation, protection, and
maintenance af all equipment and wirlng at and beyond the point where the Producer's conductors
contact the City’s canductors. The electrical power generated shall be compatible with the City's
standard distribution system at the point of delivery and of such quality that the City's system Is not
adversely affected. The Producer shall install and pay for a visible brealk disconnect switch an pole 13,
The City shall have access to the disconnect switch and the meter at all timas. A reclosure shall be
installed and paid for by the producer, made operatianal by the producer and lacated at Pole "E”, Pole
locations are shown on the Schnelder Englneering Drawing 20SE7301-d201.

7. Upon completion of the DG Intercannection, defined as the date the DG is energized, the City shall
own, aperate and malintain the dedicated solar circuit which is defined as an extension from the solar
site at the Point of Interconnection to the City's distributian circuit. The Producer shall own, operate
and maintain all equipment and facilities behind the meter at the Polnt of Intercannection. The Point of
interconnection is defined as Pole 13, where the Primary Meter is located. The City will own pole 13,
the primary meter and primary metering equipment, Equipment on the producer side of the Primary
meter, including pale 14 where a 3-phase gang operated disconnect switch is ta be located, pole 15, and
the step-up transformer will ba owned by the solar preducer.

B. Purchases of Electricity from Producer.

The City will pay on a monthly basis for the energy supplied by Producer to the City as spacified in the
PPA, The rate chosen and paid by the City to the Producer shall be an agreed upon purchase rate
between the City and the Producer that will be updated annually. The City agreas to pay for the
metered KWh output supplied to the solar circuit and distribution grid at the solar site {Paint of
Interconnection), The Producer shall install and maintain a utility grade kilowatt-hour {lWh) meter for
the measurement of electrical energy produced by the System. The producer shall pay for the
Installation and maintenance of advanced metering system and the meter(s) shall be capable of
measuring output in 15-minute intervals. The meter shall be instalied and maintained to be read
remotely via an MV-90 meter reading format/system. Purchaser {and/or its designee) shall have direct
access to the meter data. At its own discretion, the City of Smithwviile and LCRA may have a separate
meter or meters, and Provider will facilitate the installation and operation If requested. Provider to be

rasponsible for any filings with ERCOT should current reqguirements change or praduction exceeds 1
MW,

9, Term. The acceptance of this instrument by the City shall constitute an agreement between the
Producer and the City which shall continue in force from the date service Is made available by the
Producer and shall continue until terminated by either party.

10. Breach. The fallure or refusal to perform any obligation contained in this Agreement by either Party
shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. The Parties shall have such remedies for breach as may be
provided for by law or In equity, Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Producer
and/or the City may discontinue service if elther Party has breached any portion af this Agreement by
failure to make timely paymeant or otherwise.

11. Entire Agreament. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties and
supersedes all prior agreements between the Producer and the City for the service herein described.
The City, its agents and employees have made no representations, promises, or made any inducements,
written or verbal, which are not contained herein. The Producer agrees that it is not relying on any
statements not herein contained.

12. Assignment, This Agreement shall not be assighed by the Praducer except in accordance with the
articles, bylaws, and rules and regulations of the City or as specifled in the PPA,

13, Applicable Law. This Agreement is deemed executed in the State of Texas and will ba canstrued
under the laws of the State of Texas, without regard to its conflict of laws principles. Any legal action for
enforcement of or related to this Agreement will be commenced and heard in a District Court of Bastrop

County, Texas, and Producer and the City consent and submit to the jurisdiction and venue of that
Court.

City of Smithvllle Smithville Solar One, LLC

o Do Tistte e Mo Bl

26



Schedule 1: Description of Premises and System

System Premises: Vacant land in or near Smithville, in Bastrop, County, Texas described as
24.4 Acres located at 665 NW Loop 230. The site plan is provided in Proposal, Schedule 2.
System will connect to Bluebonnet Electric Cooperative’s distribution utility line adjacent to
or on property.

Anticipated Rebate or Subsidy:

Incentive Amount = 30% U.S. Investment Tax Credit

Property Tax Exemptions. Any exemptions are the responsibility of the Provider and are
strictly subject to Provider’s efforts. Purchaser cannot grant tax exemptions on behalf of
other taxing entities.

System Size: 996 KW AC; 1.432 MW DC

Equipment:

Scope:

Racking: Sun Action Trackers, single axis tracking
Modules: ET Solar 340W or other

Inverter: Solectria Solar, XG 1500-166, Yaskawa or other
Monitoring: TBD

Metering: TBD

Transformer: TBD

Provider Responsibilities

a)

b)

d)

Design Preparation: Design, Engineer, Install and Inspect the proposed System
mounting site to assure long-term safety and stability.

Rebate: Prepare all rebate documentation and communicate with all relevant agencies,
if applicable.

Design: Produce and provide CAD single-line electrical and layout drawings of the
System. Drawings will consist of a complete site plan showing the location of the array,
inverters, and routing of conduits, an elevation showing panel visibility from the street,
and any details necessary for the plan check and permitting.

Pre-installation Conference: Before System installation, conduct a pre-installation
conference at the project site to review procedures, schedules, safety, and coordination
of the installation. Several conferences may be needed if the complexities and
construction schedules so require.

27



g)
h)

)

Procurement, Installation: Furnish all necessary mounting hardware, photovoltaic
modules, electrical equipment, and labor for installation of the System up to the utility
grid interconnection point[s] as indicated in this Agreement.

Permits: Obtain all permits required to perform the Work.
Inspections: Serve as the owner’s representative for applicable System inspections.

Site Safety: Jobsite safety meetings once per week during Installation Work, or upon
addition of new personnel to the jobsite.

Site Access: During construction, Provider will be responsible for the security of the
system, equipment, tools and other materials related to the Provider’s Work.

Acceptance Testing and System Commissioning
Provider shall:

1. Execute an Interconnection Agreement approved by and implemented with the
utility grid operator (City of Smithville).

ii.  Conduct an inspection, test and commissioning procedure to ensure that the
System is installed in a professional manner and consistent with prudent industry
practices. A record of the installation and the major components including
modules, inverters, transformers, and source circuit combiners will be
documented in a test and commissioning report.

iii. Test and verify that all non-current-carrying metal parts are solidly grounded and
all equipment and System grounding is installed and functional per NEC 2008.

iv.  Test and verify that phase sequencing, fuse continuity, and open circuit voltage
are within the manufacturers recommended range at the DC disconnect. Test
and verify that the inverter is operating effectively within the typical start up
time and record the DC operating voltage, phase currents, and inverter power.

v. Provide a complete operation and maintenance manual for the System (two
printed copies and one electronic copy). The manual will include: (i) as-built
drawings, (ii) as-built shop drawings, (iii) a copy of any required submittals or
filing, (iv) product cut sheets, (v) product operation manuals, (vi) a copy of the
photo record, (vii) written Utility approval, (viii) product warranties; and (ix)
supplier and installer contact information.

k) Solar Monitoring System: The System will include a solar monitoring service. The

monitoring service will continuously monitor the key performance variables of the
System and transmit this data to Provider and Purchaser servers through the Internet
and will be accessible through a single data access including system-level and
aggregated system data. Purchaser shall have access to all data and all third-parting
monitoring will be at the Provider’s cost.

28



2. Purchaser Responsibilities

Interconnection: Purchaser to provide an Interconnection Agreement for the delivery
of energy services with the Provider.

System Management: Provide a single point of contact for the project. Report any
safety issues, security issues or any noticeable problems with regard to the System’s
overall performance.

3. Clarifications

a)

b)

Work Hours: Provider’s standard work hours are Monday through Friday 7am to 5:30pm
unless approved by Provider’s System Manager.

Included in pricing: Performance Guarantee as provided by Provider’s financing entity
and to be determined. Installation of solar energy system (includes: design, engineering,
permitting, installation, monitoring, rebate application and paperwork processing for
solar energy system). Payment of prevailing wage labor. All system repairs and ongoing
maintenance.

29



Schedule 2 - - kWh Rate

The kWh Rate with respect to the System under the Agreement shall be in accordance with
the following schedule:

Year | Escalator | KWhr Price
1 0 $0.056
2 2% $0.057
3 2% $0.058
4 2% $0.059
5 2% $0.061
6 2% $0.062
7 2% $0.063
8 2% $0.064
9 2% $0.066
10 2% $0.067
11 0% $0.067
12 0% $0.067
13 0% $0.067
14 0% $0.067
15 0% $0. 067
16 0% $0. 067
17 0% $0.067
18 0% $0.067
19 0% $0.067
20 0% $0.067
21 0% $0.067
22 0% $0.067
23 0% $0.067
24 0% $0.067
25 0% $0.067

30



Schedule 3 —Intentionally Omitted

Schedule 4 — Estimated Annual Production

Estimated Annual Production commencing on the Commercial Operation Date with respect
to System under the Agreement shall be estimated as follows:

Veir Estimated Annual
Production in kWhr
1 2,590,000
2 2.577.050
3 2,564,165
4 2,551,344
5 2,538,587
6 2,525,894
7 2,513,265
8 2,500,698
L 2,488,195
10 2,475,754
1l 2,463,375
12 2,451,058
13 2,438,803
14 2,426,609
15 2,414,476
16 2,402,404
17 2,390,392
18 2,378,440
19 2,366,547
20 2,354,715
21 2,342,941
22 2.331.226
23 2,319,570
24 2,307,972
25 2,296,433

The values set forth in this table are estimates (and not guarantees), of approximately how
many kWhs are expected to be generated annually by the System.

31



Schedule 5 — Identification of Provider’s Financing Party

Provider shall provide Purchaser with notice information for any Financing Party within a
reasonable time after such Financing Party assumes any interest in the System.

32



Schedule 6 — Notice Information

Purchaser:

COMPANY: City of Smithville

ADDRESS: 317 Main Street

CITY STATE ZIP CODE: Smithville, TX 78957
PHONE: 512-237-3282

FAX

EMAIL: citymanager@ci.smithville.tx.us

With a copy to:

Provider:

COMPANY: Smithville Solar One, LLC
ADDRESS : 1727 Ben Crenshaw Way
CITY STATE ZIP CODE : Austin, TX 78746
PHONE : 512-296-5040

FAX :

EMAIL : davidcox@gobigsolar.com

With a copy to:

Financing Party:

[To be provided by Provider if applicable and when known]
COMPANY

ADDRESS

CITY STATE ZIP CODE

PHONE

FAX

EMAIL

33



	Council Packet 11-14-22 Part 1.pdf
	Council Information (002).pdf
	Schedule
	Develop a Link on the City's Website
	News Releases and Mass Media
	Public Workshops and Meetings
	Targeted Community Outreach
	Provisions for Open Discussion





